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From early beginnings
Free Press marks 100 years

It was on July 2, 1873, 1hat the fivst issve of The Acton Free Press was
bravely printed ot a stalt hawtfed press, and sold in this village of 700

souils,

Bakery.
Tho time; Friday movaing.

Tho prive: $1 pel atvum in advawce. |
Editor amd piviahes: -.'lt\iﬁ{ah Hacking, an ambitions businessman

who also operated the

Canada abownted i spivited little papers

Wity Advertiser.

well aver a cenfury ago.

Citics had far mone bews ahweds than nowadays and amall (owns migh_t

have two or three conmpeting weeklies,
Acton recedved -;um“x:?w,‘ atet there hasn't been another since. And

for muoat of thal hww

VOuTy, the tawn's anly newspaper

has been in the

" somewhat inky hands of fwo families, the Moeores and the Dills.

But back to the begluning. . .

Aoton ready
for a paper

- Mr. Hacking had wnade eoguickes and he
decided the village of Avion was ready [
him. He assembled the equiparent be woukl
need - hand sel 1y pe In parvow drawers aixl

- & hanc-{ed press.

He arranged (o reat quarters upatairs in
Maithews Hall, at the busitling LD
of Mill and Willow, (This buikling has been
moved back down Willow, and now housed
Hotchen'a Bakery.) Counctl meetings were
held there hefore the town hall was built.

The first issue is completely reprinted
for this centennial edition, including his
leas-than-immaorta) words “We launch our
little craft tnte the big ocean, amnd christer;
her the Free Preas. . . sall on, good ship!”

He reasoned "For a number of yeara
this village exhibiled but comparatively
glow cgogmn in growth, and its busineas
was done in an easy-golng, jog-trot sart of
style. Of late, however, a decided im-
provement In every way has been per-
coptlble...It has continued te grow and
proaper in a ratio more in keeping with the
modernized ideas of younger mushroom

villages...Wo have {alth to belleve that the
impetus which has recently been given will
continue to exert an influence that will
carry it forward with very rapid strides."

Surprisingly, there were carrier boys
then, a practice soon abandoned in favar of
mail delivery and store purchases. House-
to-house delivery by cager youngsters was
resumed in the summer of 1974 with the
{introduction of home mall dellvery service
In Acton.

- New building

later post office

Alter two years of printing upstairs, Mr.
Hacking persuaded his landlord, a long-time
marchant James Malthews, to bulld a one-
storey [rame bullding next door to his thriv-
ing store and post offlce on Mill St. to house
The Free Press. .

Here the newspaper was produced for
another two years, next door to its original
site.

This little building then became the
village's flrat separate post office with

James Matthews postmaster over 50 years;

{ater a recruiting atation, then the home of
the once-famous Acton Checker Club, the
Acton Publle Utilities oflice and then Evans
meat shop. It no longer exists. The Toronto-
Dominton bank sits on the location now.

The (irst apprentice was T. Albert
Moore, He washed inky rollers, carried the
papets to homes of subscribers, rain or
shine, and learned to sct type.

It's recorded foreman Bob Simpson once
declared it was impossible to get oul o

weekly edition without a pitcher of Bob

Dickic's beer,

Moore, Galbraith

are new owlers

On November 28, 1877, Joseph Hacking
wrote “The present editor and proprietor of
the Free Press, [inding nfter a falr trial of
two and a hall years, that managing two
separate establishments at a distance of
fourteen miles apart, was neilher profitable
nor satlsfactory, has concluded to dispose of
the Free Prezs and confine himself to his
business in Guelph . . . In fulure the Free
Press will be conducted by Messrs, Moore

First ledger
named readers

w{m

The place: Matthewa Hall, taw the vacant rooma above Hotchen's

and Galbralth, two enterprising practical
printers, sulficlently experienced In news-
wer Jife to warrant the hope that the
chango will be beneficlal to our patrons and
all concerned.”

By the next week the masthead read T.
A. Moare, manager and 8. W. Galbraith,
editor, but tho four-page paper looked just
ihe same—the front page flled with a short
atory, witticlams and anecdotes as well an a
(ew ads, especiatly for patent medicines, the
back pago rolid advertising, and the middle
two pages & melango of local and world
news with more local and Guelph ads,

Something had been amiss thal wasn't
reported in the Free Presa.

The new owners sot aut by saying “We do
nat holit aurselves responaible for the post
histery of the paper, nor the courge it has
puraued. Mr. Hacking, we are sure, tried {o
do his duly, and act in an tmpartial manner
lo both politice! partles . . .Wo are respon.
sible {for the future alone. Wo dislike making
promises and thercloro we will not maoke
them. But If practical encrgy, careful busi-
ness management, pluck and persoverance
wlil make it the best paper in the county, it
will be so. We do not intend to make it a poll-
tical paper—to take either the Grit or Tory
side of the fence—but wish lo make it a good
family nowspaper.

“We have just added te the mechanical
department of the catablishment a card
press and other requisites to a well-con-
ducted printing offlce, and belng both prac-
tical printers, we are prepared to lurn out
work equal (If not better) Lo ony other offico
in the Counly. In a ward, to be brief, our alm
will be to make the Free Press a welcome
visitor to overy inteltigent and well-ordered
home throughout this section of the coun
l "I‘I
ryllnwcver they went on to record in the
snme lssue for thelr readers in well-ordered
homes almost two complete calumns of the
confeasions of a man who murdered his
wifo, all from the Guelph Mercury. Com-
plete and horrid details of the execution
followed including the fact his doughters
“uttered lamentations painful to hear."”

Two Moores

now take over

T. Albert Moore soon atyled himsell
Publisher and Proprietor, and 5. W.
Galbralth, Editor. They said frankly In
Japuary, 1878, “Compliments go a great
way in cncouraging an editor, but it will not
support him, It is a well-known fact that it
takes n great deal of money to run a
newspaper and we would like if those who

are in arrcars would come and scitie at
ohce."

Another change in management was
duly recorded on July 18, 1878, Editor
Galbraith had accepted a situation with thd
Montreal Evening Poat.

“Mr. T. Atbert Moore", says the

editorial that week, ""the former publisher,
at the sollcitation of many of his friends, as
all his tlme would be taken up in editing the

paper, resolved to toke into partnership his

The first ledger. handwritten by Jose¢ph
Hacking, has been saved carefully these
hundred vesrs. According to its yellow
pages, the first subscribers in 1875 read like
a who's who of the new village incorporated
just two years. They were Chas. Cameron,
James Switzer, George Hynds, Herbert
Jenners, James Wilds, John Kennedy,
Mocris Sayers, John B. Coats, John Secord,
Thos. Watson, John Cameron, Thos,
McMackin, Samuel Laird, John Kenney,
Peter S. Avmstrong. W.H. Walker, Wm.
Trotter, James Goodall, John McDougali,
Stafford Zimmerman, Dr. MecGarvin,
Edward Nicklin, Benjamin Nicklin, John
Speight.

Eli Snyder, Charles T. HIl, Wm.
Stephenson, James Moore, Fred H. Storey,
Edward Lucas, John Roes, Major Wm.
Allan, Thos. Edgar, Robert Little, Danlel
W, Campbell, Abraham Matthews, Wm,
Bowman, George Forbes, James McGuire,
Wm. Lundy, Robert Ramshaw, George
Ryder, Hugh Cameron, Sydney Smith,
Chas. Camercon, Mrs. Swan, Donald
McNair, D. Maloney, Thos. Smyth.

Thoa. Ramshaw, Robert Dickie, Ran-
som Adams, RobL Agnew, G.M. Scolt,
Thos. Kennedy, John T. Brown, John
Gelding, Patrick Kelly, Robl. Galloway,
Jos. P. Allan, Thos. H. Campbell, Geo.
Stoddard, James Nicklin, Oliver Logler,
John Storey, John Walters, Thoa. Ebbage,
J. M. Mann, Edw. Matthews, Robt. Craine,
Heary Damper, Robt Creech, Christine
Henderson, Robt. Fisher, C. Sydney Smith,
John B. Burns, James Matthews, Adam
Dickson. ' :

Malcolm Kennedy, James E. Cobban,
Isaac Francis, Horace J. Hall, Anthony
Stephenson, John Jamieson, Mathew
Kennedy, W Beck, ZA. Hall, RB. Cook,
David T. Smith, Michael Speight, James
McLam, D. Willilamson, Thos. Moore, Alex

Grant, James Ryder, Dr, Lowry, Herry
Yeman, Edward Moore, Dr. Morrow,. Asa

Hall, James Cameron, Samuel Carter, Rev.

. Lee, Duncan Kennedy, Jamen
pbell, W. L. Worden, )

Wm. Steel, J. Henry Smith, Mrs. Secord,

vV %Wm, Watson, Miss Stalfard,

H. Hunt, Peter McCann, John McArthur,
Rev. Wm. Cameron, Albert Matthews.
Subscriptions in the neighbouring
countryside went to Brock Swackhammer,
Henjamin Anderson, Wm. McDonald, John
Scott Jr., John Arthurs, John Shaw, Thos.
Lamb, Wm. Gordon, Duncan Taylor,
Benjamin Wallace, Peter Mann, Donald
McDonald, Archibald Campbell, Lachlin
Currie, Joseph Lasby, Wm. Moore, Alex

Cunnings, Alex Lasby, John Gamble, Joel ~

Lestie, Thos. Elliot Jr., Leslie Wright, John
Stalker, James McDonald, :
George Douglass, Wm. Stove, George
Wright, John Donaghue, George Agnew,
David Casdy, Adam Winlow, Donald
McLanty, Walter Robinson, File
Somerville, Robt. Storey, Thoa. Cameron,
Arch McEachern, George Tollen, Mathero
McCann, Allan McDougal, Samuel Moore,
Wm. Waldy, W.P. Brown, Kinard Bros.
Thos. Dockray, James Bell, Jacob
Fisher, George Elltot, John Lawson, Paul
Kennedy, Andrew C. Scott, David L., Smith,

Andrew B. Murray, John Warren, Joseph

Feamley, Robl. Sims, John Waldy, Mrs,
Samuel Speight, Alex H. Brown, Wm.
Smyth, Malcolm McPherson, Michael
Lamb, D. and A. Marrm, George Walters,
Danfield Swackhammer, James McKenzle,
Peter Lee, DW. Smith, David Black,
ilnr:&l Caverhlll, Peter Anderson, George
artin

James Altken, Daniel Thompson, James
McGregor, John Slasser, Hobt Gibbans,
Wm. Ismond, John Stewart, George
Mulholland, Henry A.B. Grant, James
Scott, John Murray, James Gibbons, Robt.
Kennedy, Alex Waldy, Duncan McGregor,
Danie! Roberison, Joseph Allan, Thos.
Gamble, Joseph H. Brown, Danie}

Livingston, John A.C. Anderson, John -

Berton, Thos. Whitely, J. McSpadden,
Nicholas Forbes, John McKinnon, Alex
Kennedy, John McLaren

. Mary Swackhammer, John Robertson,
Thos. Cook, Alexander Smith, Hugh
Mcloughlin, John Bennett, Lachlin Ken-
nedy, James Shark, Thos. Perryman,
Oliver Lashy, John Lamb, Mrs, Ann
Russell, Solomon Rezell, J. B, Chj :
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IFree Proeus staffers a

1900's. In the window I8 11, . Moore, in the group

hrother, Mr. H. P, Moore, as munnger, thus
allowlng himsell & much lopger time Lo
collect loen) news, and other interesting
matter, that the Free Press maey atlaln
even n mueh higher standard thsn here-
lofore.”

dprarticular attentlon will be given to
local affnirs’’, sny the brothers.

That week's toen] alfnirs: o threshing
mnchine passed through town; the wheat
looks well: the bund wan out serennding Dr.
McGacvin Monday and wag fnvited o lor
ice cream omd cakes, Mr. Wm. Gramt
stepped on n needle but Is able lo be aboul
agaln; the Congregatlonal Sabbnth School
picnle was held In Mr, Armatrong’s grove,
caomplainta are being made some boys are
{n the habit of buthing In Morrow's pond in
the daylight; business is dull In town.

World news wos leas routine—there
were threats of flghts during the 12th of July
parades in Montreal; there were between
40 and 50 deaths from sunstroke ot St Louis
Inst week: the bllligrd room attached to the
Royal Hotel In Guelph went up In Nlames

_and one fire engine exploded; nntlves are
revolting al New Caledonla; Hantan

damaged his boal; the promised reforms on
Cuba have begun.
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re shown here In the early . are an unidentified boy, (3. A, Dills, Charles
Matthews, and Ern Brown.

Adnns, Willlam Gluss and Mary (3luss,
hig wifn; Chorloile Adams, Wilhur ¥,
Adwane, Juseph 7. Adoagns, Jucinds K.
Aduing, Norrlet K. Adsms, Agnes M.
Adama and Abigall 1. Adams,

Tuy Vil Banily Seatt, widow of Juhn Beotl,
hought the lawd. Slx yeors loter Willlam
Grant, a wagon muker and Acton's first
ennstahle after incorporation, hought the
property.

In Hi7A Mr. Gront sald Lo Raoberl Fisher

of ITrin, Mr. Flsher moved Mr, Grant's sliop
from the Jolin 5t side of the lot Lo the MIN
St. frontuge, Here he opened a tinwure and
stove shap. After two or three years he gold
the business to Thomas Stewart und Jumes
Hil.

The husiness was moved in the winter of
1879 further down MIilL, nnd the Free Press
moaved in,

Publication
date changes

By now the paper came oul Thursdays,
rather than Fridays, and this day prevailed
untll about 15 years ago.

~

The Free Press staff in March 1927 was Clara

Moore, Earl Vincent,

G.A, Dills, Bob

MacArthur, Cam Currie and H. P, Moore. It was
at the time Arlof Dills assumed the ownership of

- the paper,

New location
was tinshop

On October 31, 1878 the paper reported
casually "Remember (hat the ¥ree Press
office has been removed {rom the otd stand,
next door to the Post Office, to the building
formerly occupled by T. Stewart and Co., a8
a tin-shop. The latter bullding has been

 expressly and tastefully fitted up for us. All
. our friends are Invited to call and see us.”

Editor T. Albert Moore gave for more
space to the need for a new cemelery (o
replace “'the delapidated burying ground
.. .In 80 close proximily to the centre of the
village'’; to the nocturnal actions of *'wor-
thiess young vagabonds”; a murder at-
tempt in Guelph entitled "'Whiskey and
Pistols” (35 inches of small type} and the
names of Sir John Macdonald’s cabinet *as
appeared in Monday's Mall”,

Editor G. A. Dills reminisced " The Free
Press bullding we recall as a boy had a big
wide wooden verandah ond the paper cutter
wasa the first piece of machinery as one
went in the front door. A steam boiler was
fired up every press day and the papers
were printed on the old Prouty press.

Adams family

owned the site

This new location was at the corner of
sMill and John on a lot which was first sold
out of the founding fathers, the Adams
{amily, subdivision, by Ruth Adams,
widow, to Ann McKenzle, widow.

But this ot (where the old Free Press
building still stands} had seen several ex-
changes of ownership in its course from
wheatfleld to merchandising.

John Hogate, a merchant in the early
days, sotd the lot in 1852 to Angus Kennedy,
a carpenter. Mr, Kennedy built the white
{rame house which stood on the corner until
the Manning block was bujlt 20 ycars ago.
The house was moved out Highway No. 7,
about a mile east of town, and is still there.

In 1857 there was a dispule among mem-
bers of the Adams family concerning pro-
perties, Legal documents list Charles F.

~ In 1896 H. P. Moore purchased the pro-
perty from (he estate of the late Hobert
Fisher. '-

H.P. Moore
states position

Dated at Acton, Lhe 30th day of June,
1879, came a notice of Dissolution of Part-
nership. The name of T, Albert Moore was
replaced by that of H. P. Moore that week,
and so it remained for many years.

Mr. Moore wrote a fine editorial entitled

“The Change" -
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“Parttenlur sibention will be given @
uffairs ronnecied with Uwe village and
vemanly Ly which we bedong, 8nd our Lacg
colimns will always conliin correct
jets of everything o Lokl im
which muy lranapire. o

“In politics we continge neutrsl, sod
shull not be devoled U apy politics] party pr
fucting, hut shall at sl] times and unvler all
circumeslanees consider ourselyves free
Hiscuss mstters of putdic Inlerest on their
erierits. 'The field being sa eficient]ly and
capably filled by the medropeditan journals,
wherein party palitics is & specialty and
wherein every loculty is sfforded for fulflj!-
ing their mission, the village paper may
well remain content Lo Jet them do the
heavy work of the cralt. It seems to us the’
village newspaper can deviote its energles’
o betler advanlege by giving more atten
tion to matters of local import—effairs b
which the community can feel an interest.” .

The affsirs Mr. Moore deemed worthy'.
that same week included the item that
Menry Clark is back (rom the Black illls ol
Ilukots after five years in the American’
army, during which time he was aimos:
scalped; o fats] sunsiroke in Nasgs.
gaweya: o harn huilding bee for & hurned:’
out nefghbor in Frin; a runaway horse
recovered thanks to a posteard from Chin-
guacousy: hroken boards in the sidewslks;’
sirawherries, lemonade and a lecture In the:
Drill Shed under the auspices of the Col
gregationaiisis; tendollar suits at Fyfe and’
McNabbs; lce cream by the quart or scoof
at Clark and Matthew's parlor; msle!
cltizens bathing in Nicklins pond; Mr. W. H."
Storoy shipping glovea all over Canaday!
and the crop prospects are good, but thye!
potato bugs have relnforcements arrivlligi
dﬂ“}". 3 ",

It was n cheery paper, full of advertisg-!
ments thot delight readers today, such ad
the Indian Panacea for Female Complaints!
$1. World news was also carried and Mr. H!
. Moore's flest edition as editor reports the!

‘Russian authoritles changing thelr deallng:

wlth national affairs because ‘the pressnt
policy of repreasing ls absolutely fostering|
Communlam, Soclulism and Nihlllam.' Ilm
170

Congenial holiday «:

N V1]

for the editor '

' L] p.Jil
OUne column of the Dec. 4, 1879 [ssye
rocords: “iHLP, Moore resolved a weedk's:
holiday would be congenla), so T. Albert :la
editor pro._tem” A belter explanatios.
further along the same page: yirt
~-“We announce in this isaue the union by,
matrimony of Mr. H.P. Moore, Editor and.
Proprietor of this journal, and eldest son of|
the late Edward Moore, Esq. to Mias Haitis,
I. Speight, second daughter of John Speighty.
Esq. both of this village. The marriage was:
consummated last evening at 8 o'clock i
the Acton Methodist church, Rev. R, Hobba:
conducting the ceremony. A largs.
proportion of the villagers were present and
witnessed Lhe ceremony, which was botl,
solemn and interesting. The bride and hev.
mald, Miss Lottle E. Speight, wersy
aplendldly attired. Mr. Moore hsd fee
groom his brother T. Albert Moore. .,
“This being the {irst marriage celebrag-.

ed in the church, the couple were presented:

W
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Mr. and Mrs. H. P. Moore were married in 1879
and this is their wedding photo. = -




